DEPARTMENT of TRANSPORTATI ON
RESEARCH and SPECI AL PROGRAMS ADM NI STRATI ON
OFFI CE of PI PELI NE SAFETY
WASHI NGTON, DC 20590

)
In the Matter of )
)
Western Gas Interstate Conpany,) CPF No. 45105
)
Respondent . )
)
)
Fl NAL ORDER

On May 16-19, 1995 and June 15-16, 1995, pursuant to

49 U. S.C. 8 60117, a representative of the Ofice of

Pi peline Safety (OPS) conducted on-site pipeline safety

i nspections of Respondent's facilities and records in
Guynon, Gkl ahoma and Austin, Texas. As a result of these

i nspections, the Director, Southwest Region, OPS, issued to
Respondent, by |letter dated Decenber 1, 1995, a Notice of
Probabl e Viol ation, Proposed Cvil Penalty and Proposed
Conpl i ance Order (Notice). |In accordance with 49 CF. R 8§
190. 207, the Notice proposed finding that Respondent had
violated 49 C F. R 88 192.13(c), 192.465(d) and 192.707, and
proposed assessing a civil penalty of $5,000, for one of the
all eged violations. The Notice al so proposed, in accordance
with 49 CF. R 8§ 190.217, that Respondent take certain
measures to correct the alleged violations.

Respondent responded to the Notice by letter dated January
24, 1996 (Response). Respondent did not contest the Notice,
but offered information to explain one of the allegations
and requested mitigation of the proposed civil penalty.
Respondent al so agreed to the terns and conditions of the
proposed conpliance order. Respondent has not requested a
hearing and therefore, has waived its right to one.



FI NDI NGS OF VI OLATI ON

Item1 in the Notice alleged that Respondent failed to
followits witten procedures concerning pipeline system
review, location |iaison, odorant |evel testing, casings and
at nospheric corrosion. Section 49 C.F.R 8§ 192.130 requires
t hat each pipeline operator prepare, maintain and foll ow a
manual of written procedures for conducting nor mal
operations, maintenance activities and handling abnornal

oper ati ons and energenci es.

Respondent did not contest this alleged violation.
Accordingly, I find that Respondent did not followits
written procedures as required by the pipeline safety
regul ations and therefore violated 49 CF. R 8§ 192.13(c).

Item2 in the Notice all eged that Respondent had viol ated

49 C. F.R 8 195.465(d), which requires that whenever an
operator’s cathodic protection nonitoring indicates a
deficiency, the operator will take pronpt remedial action to
correct the deficiency. The Notice alleged that
Respondent’ s cat hodi c protection surveys showed i nadequate
cathodic protection |levels at several pipeline |ocations and
Respondent did not take pronpt renedial actions to correct

t hese deficienci es.

In its Response, Respondent stated it did take renedi al
action within a reasonable period of tinme and submtted

i nformati on docunenting its actions. A review of this
informati on shows that during a three year period Respondent
undertook a series of maintenance actions to correct the

i nadequat e cathodic protection |evels. Respondent stated
that, it had spent a “considerabl e anount of noney” to
upgrade its cathodic protection system Respondent
explained that it had hired a cathodic protection consultant
and replaced five ground beds to inprove its cathodic
protection system

Bet ween 1993 and 1995, Respondent was aware of | ow readi ngs
for its cathodic protection surveys on its pipeline system
The pipeline safety regulations require that, unless an
operator can cite circunstances which prevented it from
correcting existing cathodic protection deficiencies, an
operator nust take pronpt renedial action to correct the



cathodi c protection deficiencies. A review of Respondent’s
cat hodi c protection survey records indicates that there were
several |ocations that
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had deficient readings for three inspection cycles

(approxi mately 3 years). Respondent has not shown any

ci rcunst ance that woul d have prevented it fromtaking pronpt
remedi al action and correcting these deficiencies.

| have reviewed the record including Respondent’s response
and,

accordingly, | find that Respondent did not take pronpt
remedi al actions that corrected the known cat hodic
protection deficiencies and therefore violated 49 CF. R 8§
195. 465(d) .

Item3 in the Notice alleged that Respondent failed to
maintain its pipeline markers in accordance with 49 CF. R 8§
192. 707. This provision requires line markers at certain

| ocations and that the line markers contain certain
information. The OPS inspection found that |ine markers
were mssing fromcertain required |ocations and that a
nunber of Respondent’s line markers did not contain all the
required information. |In addition, several of Respondent’s
line markers did not have Respondent’s nanme and tel ephone
nunber, as required by

49 C.F.R 8§ 192.707(d)(2).

Respondent did not contest this alleged violation.
Accordingly, | find that Respondent did not install and

mai ntai n pi peline markers as required by the pipeline safety
regul ations and therefore violated 49 CF. R § 192. 707.

These findings of violation will be considered as prior
of fenses in any subsequent enforcenent action taken agai nst
Respondent .

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTY

Under 49 U S.C. 8§ 60122, Respondent is subject to a civil
penalty not to exceed $25,000 per violation for each day of
the violation up to a maxi mum of $500, 000 for any rel ated
series of violations. The Notice proposed a total penalty
of $5,000 for Item 2.

49 U.S.C. § 60122 and 49 CF.R 8§ 190.225 require that, in
determ ning the anount of the civil penalty, | consider the
followng criteria: nature, circunstances, and gravity of
the violations, degree of Respondent's cul pability, history
of Respondent's prior offenses, Respondent's ability to pay
the penalty, good faith by Respondent in attenpting to



achi eve conpliance, the effect on Respondent's ability to
continue in business, and such other matters as justice nmay
require.
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Corrosion is a serious problemthroughout the pipeline
industry. In order to address this problem the pipeline
safety regul ations require pipeline operators nonitor and
mai ntain effective cathodic protection. The failure to
mai nt ai n an adequat e cathodi c protection system can
jeopardi ze a pipeline’ s integrity. Respondent, as indicated
inits Response, took several renedial steps to correct the
cathodi c protection deficiencies. Respondent requested that
its previously described renedial efforts be considered in
mtigation of the proposed civil penalty. | consider these
efforts to be a mtigating factor. Accordingly, having
reviewed the record and consi dered the assessnent criteria

i ncl udi ng Respondent’s corrective actions, | assess
Respondent a civil penalty of $2,500.

| find that Respondent has the ability to pay the assessed
civil penalty and the penalty will not affect Respondent’s
ability to continue in business.

Paynent of the civil penalty nust be made within 20 days of
service. Paynent can be nade by sending a certified check
or noney order (containing the CPF Nunber for this case)
payable to " U. S. Departnent of Transportation"” to the
Federal Aviation Adm nistration, Mke Mnroney Aeronauti cal
Center, Financial Operations D vision (AMZ-320), P.O Box
25770, &l ahoma Cty, OK 73125.

Federal regulations (49 CF.R 8 89.21(b)(3)) also permt
this paynent to be nade by wire transfer, through the
Federal Reserve Communi cations System (Fedwire), to the
account of the U S. Treasury. Detailed instructions are
contained in the enclosure. After conpleting the wire
transfer, send a copy of the electronic funds transfer
receipt to the Ofice of the Chief Counsel (DCC-1), Research
and Speci al Prograns Adm ni stration, Room 8407, U. S.
Departnent of Transportation, 400 Seventh Street, S.W,

Washi ngton, D.C. 20590-0001.

Questions concerning wire transfers should be directed to:
Val eri a Dungee, Federal Aviation Adm nistration, M ke
Monroney Aeronautical Center, Financial Operations Division
(AMZ- 320), P.O Box 25770, Cklahoma City, OK 73125; (405)
954-4719.



Failure to pay the $2,500 civil penalty will result in
accrual of interest at the current annual rate in accordance
with

31 US. C 8§ 3717, 4 CF.R § 102.13 and 49 CF. R § 89.23.
Pursuant to those sane authorities, a late penalty charge of
six percent (6% per annumw ||l be charged if paynent is not
made within 110 days of service. Furthernore, failure to
pay the civil penalty may result in referral of the matter
to the Attorney General for appropriate action in an United
States District Court

PROPOSED COVPLI ANCE ORDER

The Notice proposed requiring Respondent to take certain
corrective actions to achieve conpliance with the pipeline
safety regulations. In its Response, Respondent did not
contest the proposed conpliance order. In addition,
Respondent subm tted docunentation of the corrective actions
it had taken in order to conply with the terns and

condi tions of the proposed conpliance order. The Director,
Sout hwest Regi on, OPS has reviewed Respondent’s renedi al
actions and accepts these neasures as adequately fulfilling
the requirenents of the pipeline safety regul ations.
Accordingly, no need exists to issue an conpliance order and
no further action is needed with respect to the proposed
conpl i ance order.

WARNI NG | TEM

ltem 4 of the Notice warned Respondent that the capacity of
its pressure relief devices were not sufficient to protect
its pipeline system agai nst over pressurization. Respondent
has presented information that shows that it has addressed
the cited item However, should a violation cone to the
attention of OPS in a subsequent inspection, enforcenent
action wll be taken.

Under 49 C. F.R 8§ 190. 215, Respondent has a right to
petition for reconsideration of this Final Order. The
petition must be received within 20 days of Respondent's
receipt of this Final Order and nust contain a brief
statenent of the issue(s). The filing of the petition
automatically stays the paynent of any civil penalty
assessed. All other terns of the order, including any
required corrective action, shall remain in full effect



unl ess the Associ ate Adm ni strator, upon request, grants a
st ay.



The ternms and conditions of this Final Oder are effective
upon recei pt.

Ri chard B. Fel der
Associ ate Adni ni strator
for Pipeline Safety

Dat e:




